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State says: *Don t
ftO<vv .  3 . ^ ;

quash indictment
CAPE T O W N —It was not pos­

sible to se t o u t  each and every  
detail of each .an d  every act alleged  
to have bepn com m itted by the
11 people a t present appearing at 
the Crim inal Sessions, Cape Town, 
on a charge of sabotage, Mr. J. E. 
N othlm g, the Deputy A ttorney- 
G eneral, said yesterday.

He w as replying to the appli­
cation  m ade by the defence for 
the ind ictm ent to be quashed.

T hose accused are: Neville  
Edward A lexander. Don John  
W illiam  D avis, M arcus Solom ons, 
E lizabeth van der Heyden, Fikele  
C harles B am , Lionel Basil Davis, 
Ian  Leslie van  der Heyden, Dulcie  
Evon Septem ber, Dorothy Hazel 
Alexander, Doris van der H eyden  
and G ordon Frederick Hendricks.
. I t  is alleged th a t they com m it­
ted sabotage “ by m eans of a 
conspiracy to  com m it certain  
w rongful and w ilful acts,” a ltern a­
tively, i t  is alleged that they com ­
m itted  sabotage by inciting, 
instigating^, com m anding, advising  
or encouraging other persons to  
com m it certain  wrongful and  
w ilfu l acts.

In  tw o further a lternative  
charges, it  Is alleged th a t they  
contravened the Suppression of 
Com m unism  Act.

EXCEPTED
E xception w as taken on^.Tues- 

day to th e  m ain  and first" a lter­
native charges on the ground that 
the ind ictm en t was "vague and 
em barrassing and calculated to 
prejudice the accused” in th at the  
S tate  did not know and could not 
give them  certain inform ation  
w hich was essential to their  
defence and to  which they were 
entitled .

M isjoinder was given as a 
further ground for excepting to 
the first a lternative  and to the  
second and third alternative  
charges, it being contended that 
each  of the accused people was 
accused o f d ifferent acts a t differ­
e n t tim es and in  different places.

Mr. N oth lin g  said on the ques­
tion  of m isjoinder the S ta te ’s case  
w as based on  an  alleged course of 
conduct in pursuance of one cri­
m inal design. T h is design was to 
overthrow th e  Governm ent by 
violence through the Yu Chi Chan 
Club (Y.C.C.C.). Various acts and  
speeches o f th e  accused people 
constitu ted  th e it  conynon purpose.

C O M M O N PU RPO SE
‘‘I t  is  true th a t it  is not stated  

in  so m any words in the a lter­
native charges in  the indictm ent 
th a t they  acted  fn common pur­
pose, but I  subm it that it  is not 
necessary to  s ta te - th is in  the in ­
d ictm en t.”

Mr. N oth ling  said if the defence 
were in  any doubt that the S tate  
wras a llfa m g  th a t the accused 
acted in fconcert, they should have 
asked for- further particulars on 
th a t point* ‘‘I f  your Lordship feels 
th a t th is should h ave’been alleged

specifically in  the indictm ent, I 
shall gladly am end the indictm ent, 
but I subm it th a t it  is  unneces­
sary,” he said.

D ealing w ith the defence sub­
m ission th a t the ind ictm ent wras 
vague and em barrassing, Mr. 
N othling said th e  Crim inal Pro­
cedure Act required the .State to  
provide particulars reasonably 
sufficient to inform  the accused of 
the nature of the charge.

"The S ta te  is  not required to  in ­
form  the accused o f each and  
every detail o f the charge and the  
evidence,” he said.

Referring to the defence com ­
plaint that the S tate  had failed  
to com ply fu lly  w ith  requests .for 
further particulars, Mr. N othling  
said that a large volum e of addi­
tional inform ation — in  *11, 27 
typed pages — had been given to  
the accused.

EVIDENCE
Mr. Justice Vap Heerden: I 

take it  th a t if  you do know par­
ticulars. you will not lead evidence  
on them .

Mr. N othling said the defence  
w anted precise details, for e x ­
am ple, about w hich accused a t­
tended w hich m eeting. T he S tate  
had said it  did n o t  know w hether  
each of the accused attended each  
particular m eeting and naturally  
would not be able to  prove th a t  
each one attended each  o f th e  
m eetings.

T he S tate  had, however, said  
th at each of the accused attended  
m eetings during a specific period  
and at places specified.

Mr. Justice Van Heerden - ad­
journed the court un til tomorrow, 
w-hen his ruling w ill be given. —  
SAPA.



Press, police outnumbered 
White spectators
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TJOLICE and Pressm en to ­
gether m ust have out­

num bered the W hite spectators 
a t the trial of 11 men and two  
organisations on charges of con­
travening the Suppression of 
Com m unism  Act and the General 
Law A m endm ent Act. which  
opened in the Pretoria Supreme 
Court yesterday.

By 8.30 a.m., o n e-an d -a -h a’.f 
hours before the trial was due to 
start, a sizeable crowd of Afri­
cans had form ed on the pave­
m ent o f Church Square, facing  
the m ain entrance to the Palace  
of Justice. Newspaper reporters, 
photographers and policemen  
thronged the steps leading into  
th e  building.

Photographers were kept busy 
taking photographs of senior 
police officers seeking to prevent 
th e  form ation of groups of Afri­
cans on the steps of the build­
ing. and were also presented with 
the spectacle o f a Saracen  
vehicle  brought to a halt by 
th e  tra ffic  directly in  front of 
th e  building.

Policem en were on duty 
throughout the building and 
sou ght identification  of all who 
entered  the corridors leading to 
the side entrances o f the court 
in  w hich the trial is being held.

T he m assive steel grille doors 
at the back of the Palace oi 
Justice were closed and guarded 
by policem en.

In  the court itself, where a 
special dock had been installed  
to hold the 11 accused, both 
W hite and non-W hite galleries 
were filled to overflowing.

PRETORIA REPORTER

In  addition to  the large num ­
ber of newsm en reporting the  
case, the S.A.B.C. installed  a 
m icrophone in  the court room  
and m ade a recording of the  
proceedings.

It  is understood that th is is 
the first tim e in the history of 
the S.A.B.C. th at th is has been  
done and th at excerpts of the  
recordings w ill be broadcast.

Attractive Mrs. Barbara K a n ­
tor, w ife of Jam es K antor, who 
is charged in  h is capacity as a 
partner in  the firm  of Jam es 
K antor and Partners and also  
in  h is personal capacity, was 
am ong the first of the relatives 
of the accused to arrive.

Also present were Mrs. Lionel 
Bernstein and her daughter, and  
Mr. Hepple, father of Bob  
Hepple.

Mr. J. M endelson, a  B ritish  
Labour M.P., attended the pro­
ceedings durihg the m orning, as 
did m em bers of the D utch  E m ­
bassy staff, and Mr. H. R ein , the  
A ttorney-G eneral, who occupied  
a seat in  the otherw ise em pty  
Jury box.

An A frican wom an in a m ix­
ture of W estern and tribal dress 
and an African wearing w hat 
appeared to be m edicine m an  
regalia m ade an appearance a t  
the entrance to  the building, but 
did not com e in. Indian women  
in colourful national dress m ixed  
with leaders of the Jo h a n n es­
burg Indian com m unity.

W hen Nelson M andela and  
W alter Sisulu, who both at one  
tim e occupied th e  position of

Secretary-G eneral o f the banned  
African N ational Congress, 
entered th e  dock in drab prison 
uniform , they  were greeted with  
cries o f “A m andhla Ngawethu" 
(strength is ours) and raised 
clenched fis ts  from  the non- 
W hites.

T his happened every tim e they 
entered or le ft the dock until 
M ajor Fred van  Niekerk told the 
non-W hites th a t if  there was any 
more shouting the court would be 
cleared.

S itting next to each other, 
M andela and Sisulu, the first 
looking som ew hat drawn and 
the other m inus h is now famous 
beard, engaged in sporadic con­
versation throughout the pro­
ceedings.

In  contrast, bearded James 
K antor, wearing a gold bracelet 
on h is right wrist, slumped in 
his chair displaying little  or no 
interest, and Hepple so divorced 
him self in  attitude from his co­
accused th a t he would have been 
taken for a bored spectator if 
h e  had  not been in  the dock.

A steady drizzle had  dispersed 
m ost o f the A fricans gathered on 
Church Square before the pro­
ceedings ended, but this did not 
prevent those rem aining from 
breaking into  song and shoutin; 
slogans when those who had beer 
able to obtain a seat in cour 
em erged from  the court building

In sp ite  o f the rain, a row c 
policem en was still patrolling i 
front of "the pavem ent on whic 
the A fricans stood huddled undi 
coats, um brellas and newspaper



By DICK RICHARDS

Applications to qussh the 
indictment on behalf of seven 
of the prisoners and of one 
of them in his personal capa­
city and in his capacity as 
representing p.n association, 
plus two bail applications, 
occupied the whole of yester­
day’s proceedings at the 
R i v o n i a  t r i a l  of the 
“ National High Command 
and others.”

Appearing before Mr. Justice  
D e W et, the Judge -  President, 
are N elson M andela, W alter  
Sisulu, D enn is Goldberg, Go van  
Mbeki, Ahm ed M oham ed K athra-  
da, Lionel B ernstein , Raym ond  
M ahlaba, Jam es K antor, Elias  
M atsoaledi, Andrew Hepple.

T h e  first seven  are charged  
as representing an association  
Or associations known variously 
as the "N ational H igh Command, 
the N ational Liberation M ove­
m ent, T he N ational Executive  
C om m ittee o f th e  N ational Lib­
eration  M ovem ent and Um konto  
W e Sizwe (T he Spear of the  
N a tio n ),” as \yell as in  their per­
son al capacities.

Fewer counts
K antor is charged In h is  per­

sonal capacity  as well as repre­
senting the firm  of Jam es K antor  
and P artners In w h ich  he w as 
in  partnership w ith  h is  brother- 
in -law , H arold W olpe.

T hey are charged w ith  199 acts 
of sabotage — originally the  
charges to ta lled  222—w ith con ­
travening the Suppression of 
Com m unism  Act and the G eneral 
Law A m endm ent Act.

T he sabotage charges include 
dam age to  power pylons, railw ay • 
and telephone lines and the  
bom bing of public buildings.

In  h is application to have the  
Indictm ent quashed in  respect of 
th e  first seven accused, Mr. A. 
Fischer, Q.C., said th e  charges 
were n ot se t  ou t in  su fficien t 
detail to Inform  th e  accused of 
their  nature.

Refusals
A pplications for further par­

ticu lars had been m et either  
w ith  a blank refusal or the  
replies had been totally  inade­
quate.

The d ates and places m en ­
tioned In th e  pream bles to the  
charges did n ot alw ays coincide  
w ith the dates and  places of the  
offences In th e  actual charges.

Some of the acts of sabotage  
alleged to have been com m itted  
by the accused had taken place 
before the enactm ent of the  
anti-sabotage legislation.

There was also present extra­
neous and irrelevant m atter  
which, w ith the other deficien­
cies, proved em barrassing to the

■ accused and prevented them  
from  preparing a defence.

Among other anom alies, it  ap­
peared th at in the case of M an­
dela, he w as charged w ith  h a v ­
ing com m itted 156 of the 199 acts 
of sabotage w hich took place  
while he was in  Jail.

Learnt nothing
Mr. Fischer quoted extensively  

from  num erous decided cases, 
including the Treason Trial, and  
said that either the S ta te  had  
learnt noth ing from  them , or 
it had not given the accused the  
facts because it  did n ot have the 
facts.

Dr. G. Lowen, Q.C., in  h is  
application to have the ind ict­
m ent quashed in  respect of 
K antor, said th a t not only did 
K antor not know w hat he was 
supposed to  -have done but he 
was held vicariously responsible 
for w hat h is partner, Harold 
W olpe, had done.

Meaningless
In  one case, w hen asked i f  an 

act was supposed to have been 
com m itted by K antor or Wolpe, 
the reply from  the S ta te  had  
been: "Yes.”

“Numerous answers received to  
a request for further particu­
lars,” said Dr. Lowen, “are noth ­
ing but a m eaningless answer to 
a m eaningful question, w ith  an  
evasion of any sense of fair play 
to the accused.

“On the further particulars 
supplied, w hich m ean little  or 
nothing, It is im possible to pre­
pare a defence.”

B oth  Mr. F ischer and  Dr. 
Lowen will have the opportunity  
of continuing their argum ents 
today.

D r .  P .  Y u t a r ,  D e p u ty - A t to r n e y - G e n e r a l , 
w i th  h im  M r .  J .  J .  M .  N a u d e ,  S e n io r  
P u b l i c  P r o s e c u to r  o f  P r e t o r i a ,  a n d  M r .  
T .  B .  V o r s t e r ,  o f  t h e  o ff ic e  o f  th e  
S e n io r  P u b lic  P r o s e c u to r ,  J o h a n n e s b u r g ,  
a p p e a r e d  f o r  th e  S ta t e .

M r .  A .  F i s c h e r ,  Q . C . ,  w i th  h im  M r .
G .  B iz o s  a n d  M r .  A .  C h a s k e ls o n  ( i n ­
s t r u c te d  b y  M r .  J o e l  J o f f e )  a p p e a r e d  f o r  
M a n d e la ,  S is u lu ,  G o l d b e r g ,  M b e k i .  
K a ih r a d a ,  B e r n s te in ,  M a h l a b a .  M a ts o a le d i  
a n d  M la n g e n i .

D r .  G .  L o w e n ,  O - C . ,  w i th  h im  M r .
H .  S c h w a rz  a n d  M r .  D .  K u n y  ( i n ­
s t r u c te d  b y  M r .  J a c k  C o o p e r ,  o f  B e n ia ­
m in  J o s e p h .  C o o p e r  a n d  p a r tn e r s )  
a p p e a r e d  fo r  K a n to r  a n d  J a m e s  K a n to r  
a n d  P a r tn e r s .

H e p p le  w a s  n o t  r e p r e s e n te d .

Bernstein 
for

^^rretoria Reporter

T IO N E L  BERNSTEIN, one of  
th e  11 accused in  th e  "Rivo­

n ia  T rial,” had given unique  
proof th a t he would in  n o  cir­
cum stances avoid standing trial, 
said  Mr. A. Fischer, Q.C., who  
m ade a bail application yester­
day on h is behalf.

Mr. G. F ischer said  he was r e ­
lying on  the rule of law  th a t as 
soon as an accused had con ­
vinced a court he was unlikely to  
avoid standing trial, he was e n ­
titled  to ball.

Bernstein had am ply dem on­
strated that at ahy tim e he was 
w illing to put his political be­
lie fs on trial and stan d  by the 
consequences.

O T H E R  FACTORS
On num erous occasions, in ­

cluding the four years during 
w hich he h a d  had the threat of 
a conviction on a charge of high  
treason hanging over h is head, 
h e  had had the opporunity jof» 
leaving th e  country but he had , 
n o t done so. 'He had no in ten ­
tio n  of doing so now. ; , 

Mr. Justice ■ D e. W et said tie 
would give Dr.' Percy Yutar, the | 
D eputy -  Attorney - General, the  
opportunity of replying to Mr. 
F ischer today. •• .
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TRIAL 
1MARGES 
QUASHED
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Defence objections 

upheld by judge
^ H E INDICTMENT in the Rivonia sabotage trial has 

been quashed. The Judge-President, Mr. Justice 
de Wet. made this order in the Pretoria Supreme Court 
at 3.30 p.m. today.

This means that the State will have to 
redraft the. indictment, present it to the 
accused, give them sufficient time to study  
the charges and to request further particulars 
and give them time to study those further 
particulars.
The case, therefore, cannot almost certainly be 

heard this year.
Mr. Justice *de et, after 

Dr. Y utar had ended liis argu­
m ent on the defence applica­
tion to quash said it was most 
im proper, when accused 
people ask for particulars to 
say to them that this was a 
m atter they knew all about.

the'

Hepple to
give State 
evidence

‘‘ That presupposes 
guilty.”

“ I am satisfied the inform ation  
they asked for should be given  
and the indictm ent cannot stand  
in  the absence of that inform ation.

“ It is nc(t the function of the 
Court to draw an indictm ent for 
the State.

The judge said it was possible, 
if the application for quashing was 
not acceded to, the ridiculous posi­
tion would be reached of the  
defence having to ask for an  
adjournment after each State wit­
ness had given evidence to study 
that evidence.

“ T he accused should be able to 
prepare for trial before the trial 
begins.”

9 0  days
T he 10 accused — Hepple was 

discharged earlier today — will 
revert to the 90-day detainee 
status they lost earlier this month 
when they were served with the

In this case m ere will be 250 
documents — and no speeches — 
used as evidence.

Dr. Yutar referred to the defence 
argument thg* 156 acts of sabotage 
took place, while Mandela was in 
jail.

"Evidence wili be led that Man­
dela was overseas prior to jSuly 1 . 
He cam e back and prepares docu- 
rr^fts showing how the battle was 

oe waged.
7  " Then unfortunately he was 
j  arrested. Now it is said he was not 
j  responsible for / h a t  took place 
! a ftem ad ls ^  }

‘/W hile h t 'w a s  in jail a number 
Ttrf lawyers Jb'4pvo, Nokwe, among

others) visi

Plan
I

“ A plan was draw-n of the jail ' 
so that there would bp a a-attempt 
for him  to escape. i 

“ How dare my learned friends 
argue that he was nqt responsible 
for the acts while he w a s in  jail. 
I f  I  plan a murder with someone, 
then get arrested, and m y friend 
then carries out the murder, am 1 

4  Turn to Page 3. Column 6.

BAIL FOR 
KREELS

Leon M ichael Kreel and his wife, 
M aureen, o f Terrace Road, Moun­
tain View, who are awaiting trial 
Bn a charge of harbouring or 
Concealing Arthur Goldreich and 
Harold Wolpe after the Marshall 
Square escape, were granted bail 
^oday.

Kreel was granted bail of R2000 
and his w ife R400.

They are due to appear in the 
p,egional Court on December 17. 
f Bail was granted on condition 
th a t they do not leave Johannes­
burg district, th a t they do not in­
terfere w ith State witnesses and 
th a t Kreel reports twice a day 
to the police and his wife once a 
day.

Mr. H. S. Bosm an was on the  
B ench.

Bob Alexander Hepple, one of 
the 11 R ivonia sabotage trialists, 
was discharged today. Dr. Percy j indictment.
Y utar, Deputy-Attorney-G eneral, i instead of being awaiting-trial 
said Hepple would give evidence | prisoners with access to  legal re 
for the State. ' ; presentation they will now again I j

Hepple iirr.rfiiately led ^e without contact with the out-
from  the does and down the steps j  slde world until the State has re- i  i 
Into th e  cells. I t  is  probable that j drafted the indictm ent and served 11 
he will be held in  protective cus-1 the  new ones upon th em ., • 
tody until the trial starts. He did j
not leave th e  court a t the lunch i J ^ ( ) f  narallel '< I
adjournm ent. j._______" _______  I

T his dram atic turn was presaged Dr Yutar criticized the Buth(;r,_ | 
earlier when, a t the tea interval tj the defence had relied  
Hepple w as not taken down the ] 
steps to  the cells w ith h is fellow- 
accused but to  an office by two j 
Security B ranch men.

T T

on in !
their application to q u ash 'th e in­
dictment. '  

The treason trial was not a fair 
parallel because in  that case the 
State relied on 5,000 documents 
and hundreds of speeches.
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FOR FREED 
BOB HEPPLE

Pretoria Reporter

BOB HEPPLE, a Johan­
nesburg advocate who, 

until Yesterday was one of 
the accused in the Rivonia 
trial when it was announced 
that he\would be called as 
a State \ witness, said last 
night that he had not asked 
for police protection, “ nor 
do I intend to do so.”
He said he had not received any 

th reats since h is’ release.

4 The 28-year-bld a d v o c a t e  
udtiled h is 11-m ontb-old son as

■ he talked about his release and 
the four m onths he has spent in  
prison.

t “My son .h as changed a lot since  
'.my arrest — he has forgotten me.

•  I  suppose he wonders who I am."
Mrs. Shirley Hepple said: "X was 

so surprised w hen they announced  
in  court th a t Bob was being re­
leased. I  d idn’t think it would be 

' so soon. At 'firs: I couldn’t be­
lieve m y ears. I rushed out of the  
spectators' gallery and a detective 

 ̂ broughj.'Bob to rrj£."

LO ST 1 0  LB.
Tall, bespectacled Mr. Hepple, 

w ho lost .10 lb. in  jail, said that
• h e  had /kn ow n for some time 

■that h e /w a s to be released, ‘‘but 
i t  cam a as a  surprise when I was 
releas^! today.”

He said he did not know whether 
th e  omer accused were aware th at  
he ubs to be released.

m/. Hepple— top University of 
the/W itw atersrand law student of 
1951—said that he and the other 
acaused had stayed in the same 

/  ceps after  they had been charged 
I and had become awaiting trial 

pr.soners.
"The only changes were that

we were allowed literature _ as
detainees we were only allowed 
the B ib le^ an d  were able to speak  
to one another during exercise  
periods.”

TAKEN T O  FORT
He said that h e  had been moved  

to the Fort in Johannesburg a  
week before the trial, which  
started on Tuesday, and was only 
moved back to Pretoria Central 
prison on the day o f the trial.

During the tea, adjournm ent 
yesterday, Mr. H epple was taken  
to see Dr. Yutar and told he was 
to be released.

“It  has been a terrible strain,” 
Mrs. Hepple said. ‘‘B u t the worst 
is now over. T hings w on’t be easy 
though for the n ex t few  m onths.”

NONrSTOP
As Mr. and Mrs. Hepple talked, 

friends called at the house to con­
gratulate them  and the telephone  
rang non-stop.

Mr. H epple’s father — Mr-. Alec 
Hepple, the former Labour Party  
M.P. — heard of h is son’s release 
when he visited f ie n d s /-

“I have n o 1 plans" f o r ja holiday 
or about m y work,” Mr. Hepple 
said. “At the m om en t-1  feel too 
dazed to think clearly.”

I



D CONSTABLE ALL 
7 OFFER BY

KANTOR
Marshall Square

talk on when
I am free”

/

TAMES KANTOR, one of the Rivonia trialists, stated 
** in tlie Supreme Court today that he had no know­
ledge of an alleged plot to get him out of the country. 
The State’s affidavit alleging the plot, presented today 
by the Deputy Attorney-General, Dr. Percy Yutar, was 
by Johannes Arnoldus Greeff, the constable who was
jailed for helping Goldreich and Wolpe to escape.

i i 
The affidavit dealt  with a conversation 

Greeff said he had uith Kantor in Marshall 
Square.

. .
Dr. Yutar introduced the plot allegation yesterday after­

noon while Kantor’s hail application Was being argued.
H e told the court that he 

had been given a secret docu­
ment by the police which, be 

’ said, showed that Kantor 
I would be rescued from jail or 
spirited out of the country.

I f  they did not get bail an 
attem pt would be made to free 
them  frorfi jail by November 9. 
G reeff’s affidavit was made yester­
day in the Pretoria Jail.

Dr. Yutar said before reading 
it  that it would show' that Kantor 
said that G reeff had been pro­
m ised R4000, and would be paid 
.this money.
r  G reeff’s affidavit was to the 
effect that after h is arrest on 
August 25 he w as held in the 
M arshall Square cells.

H e and K antor could not talk 
to each other, but once he.' walked 

J  4  Turn to Page 3. Column 1.

H is.first, in reply to Dr. Yutar’s 
statement yesterday, denied he had  
ever heard o f '  an escape plot.

Kantor said h e  Was "astounded” 
to hear yesterday ,that there were 
plans, if  they txisfc Jat all, to help  
him escape.

"I state em phatically that that 
Up to that mom ent, he said, | (i.e., yesterday afternoon) was the 

1 he was in sym pathy with Kantor's I first time I had any knowledge 
application but that he n o w ! whatsoever o f  any such plan and 
strenuously opposed it. '  j that if  such plan does exist I am

At 10.40 he cam e into the court I certainly not included therein nor 
and handed copies of the affidavit \ would I under any circumstances 
to defence counsel. have anything whatsoever to do

"A re you ready?” he asked

There was a chorus of p r o t e s t Responsibilities  
"  You have just handed this to
us *> | The affidavit continued that

' B ut I gave you the contents |
before," said Dr. Yutar. “ Oh, well, 

[tell me' when you are ready.”

jDenial
1 Counsel and instructing  
torneys went downstairs to

at- 
the

cells, where K antor started die- 
bating h is second affidavit of the 
pay

ing his bail and not,standing trial.
Kantor r,dded that he will submit 

to  the mosrff iUi^wn,''^ _b;'al condi­
tions and will n\-i uvacie his re­
sponsibilities to ' Jus w ife and 
widowed mother.

When the court started at noon  
Dr. Yutar read out two affidavits, 
one made by Major Fred van Nie- 
kerk, head of the Pretoria CJ.D ., 
and the other by Johannes Arnoldus 
Greeff.

Major van Niekerk’s affidavit 
said he had learnt from a reliable 
source that K antor and any others 
released on bail would flee to  
Lobatsi.

? •

Trial date—  

^  Kantor 
^  protests
. T N  a brief appearance in the 

Pretoria M agistrate’s 
Court this afternoon the 10 
Rivonia sabotage trialists 
were remanded to November 

1 12 .
The appearance lasted only 

a few m inutes. The 10 men 
entered the small dock from 
the cells below the court and 
stood in two rows. They were 
not represented.

Mr. J. J. M. Naude, senior 
public prosecutor in Pretoria, 
said he wanted the case ad­
journed to  November 12 for 
summary trial in the Supreme 
Court.

As the m agistrate, Mr. D. 
F. Marais, was about to re­
mand the men, Jam es Kantor 
pushed from  the back of the 
dock and sked if he could say 
something.

He said h is legal advisers 
had not been told that the 
case/w ould  be remanded un­
til November 12. The date 
m ight not suit them.

Mr. Naude said November
12 was only a provisional date.

K antor said he wanted the 
m atter adjourned in the 
M agistrate’s Court until to­
morrow'.

After discussion the m agis­
trate remanded the 10 men 
for sum m ary trial in the  
Supreme Court on November 
12.

U They were then escorted 
j from the dock to the cells 

below.
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KANTOR 
^  PLOT 
I lleged
♦  Continued from Page 1.

t down the passage past Kantor’s 
•cell.

Kantor had told him that he 
m ust not worry about not getting 

: “ the m o n ey " because he would 
get it when he was free.

Kantor had aaded that Greeff 
; m ust not com e to his office be- 
I cause there were microphones 

there, but m ust talk outside his 
office.

Dr. Yutar then raised what he 
called “ a serious matter."

I He said he had given an under­
taking that the State, would 
honourably abide by any decision I 

the court made, and had stood 1 
by this

“ Yesterday a member of the 
defence team  said in the presence 
of a warrant officer that “ th e y " 
(the S tate) would stop at nothing. 
They will perjure any amount of 
evidence.”

Dr. Yutar said that Mr. Kuny 
had made the statem ent. He was 
not making any threats, but 
would not let the matter rest.

Mr. Kuny then rose and denied 
that he had made the statement.

The judge said that this denial 
was su fficien t at this stage.

Inspects cells

------------j.

K antor’s second affidavit denies 
that he had any conversation with 
Greeff.

r Eecause of the structure of the 
cells, he says, it was physically 
im possible that such a conversa­
tion could have taken place, and 
he asks the court, however incon­
venient, to inspect the cells and  
satisfy itself on the point.

Kantor says that on August 25 
he was under 90-day detention, so 
that it was impossible that he was 
in  his office on that day.

“ I deny 1 ever spoke to Greeff. 
I point out that I was kept 
isolated in solitary confinement 

Interrupting his reading of Kan­
tor’s affidavit at that point, Dr. 
Lowen said G reeff’s statement was 
inherently improbable 

He was at that stage facing trial 
on serious charges, for which he 
was later sentenced to six years’ 
imprisonment, and it would be im­
possible for Kantor, held in Jail, 
to have made an offer to Greeff 
with any hope of its being accepted 
or fulfilled.

Not CommunistI Dr Lowen said the _State had

not indicated at all where this in-1 
formation (that Kantor would ; 
escape) had come from “ It may ! 
have come from an anonymous 
telephone call," he added.

The judge asked Dr. Lowen if i 
Kantor would not be tempted to j 
escape if he was -given bail.

“ Kantor is not a Communist. I 
He is an anti-Communist. He does j 

. not belong to any of the organiza- • 
tions that the other accused are 
alleged to belong to,” Dr. Lowen 
replied.

At the conclusion of Dr. Lowen’s 
argument the judge said he would 
not give judgment until after  
Bernstein’s bail application, which 
he understood will be m ade to­
morrow.

After the judge had adjourned  
the case there was a heated ex­
change between Dr. Yutar and Mr. 
Kuny.

Mr. Kuny had asked Dr. Yutar 
j, to go with him to the judge.

Heated words were exchanged. /
D r . P . y u t a r .  D e p u ty  A t to rn e y - G e n e ra l ,  

w ith  h im  M r J J .  M . N a u d e , s e n io r  p u b ­
lic  p ro s e c u to r  o f  P r e to r ia ,  a n d  M r. T . B 
V orstC F . o f  th e  o ff ic e  o f  th e  S e n io r  P u b lic  
P ro s e c u to r ,  lo h a n n e s b u r g .  a p p e a r e d  fo r  th e  
S ta te .

D r . G  L o w e n , Q - C ..  w i th  h im  M r. H 
S c h w a rz  a n d  M r D  K u n y  ( in s t ru c te d  by 
M r . J a c k  C o o p e r  o f  B e n ia m in  J o s e p h , 
C o o p e r  a n d  P a r tn e r s )  a p p e a r e d  fo r  K a n to r  
a n d  J a m e s  K a n to r  a n d  P a r tn e r s .

Hepple at home
Mr. Bbb Alexander Hepple. one 

of the Rivonia trialists who was 
discharged yesterday, spent ■ part 
of the day at his Victory Park 
hom e today but neither he nor 
his wife wanted to speak to the 
Press. He went out a few times.
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F it w ere assum ed that foo ls , knaves, crim inals or 

political fanatics had form ulated an escape plan, was 
th is any reason to deny James K anlor his freedom , asked  
Dr. G. Lowen, Q.C., in the Pretoria Suprem e Courl

I

yesterday.
He w as speaking in support of 

his application  for K antor’s re­
lease on bail after K antor had 
denied any knowledge of an  escape 
plan.

T he Judge-President, Mr. Justice 
D e W et, had heard an affidavit 
subm itted by Dr. P . Yutar, the 
D eputy-A ttorney-G eneral, alleging  
th a t there was a plan to take 
any of th e  R ivonia trialists, if 
granted bail, to Lobatsi.

O ne of the affidavits was stated  
! to  h ave been m ade by Johannes 
G reeff, the policem an jailed for 
six  years for h is part in  the  
escape of Harold W olpe and 
Arthur G oldreich from  M arshall 
Square.

T A L K  IN JAIL
In  i t  G reeff said he had been 

detained  in  M arshall Square at 
th e  sam e tim e as K antor. One 
day, h is cell door being open, 
he walked past K antor’s cell. 
K antor called him  to th e  door.

K antor told him  not to worry, 
th at h e  would get h is money.

Dr. Y u ta r  sa id  there w ould be 
ev id en ce th a t K antor  had said: 
"G reeff w a s  prom ised £2,000 and  
he w ill be pa id .”

Dr. Y u ta r  then  handed in an 
affid av it m ade b y  M ajor Fred  
v a n  N iek erk , o f the P retoria  
C.I.D., in w hich he sa id  he w as  
in p o ssessio n  o f in form ation  from  
a reliab le  sou rce th a t  there w as 
a p lan  to  ta k e  an y  o f the  
R ivon ia  accu sed  gra n ted  bail to  
L obatsi.

IM PR O B A B LE  \
I f  th e y  w ere  n o t g ra n ted  bail 

there w’as a  plan afoot to take 
th em  o u t o f  cu sto d y  and to  
L ob atsi before N ovem ber 9.

Dr. L ow en  sa id  th a t  G reeff's 
a ffid a v it  w a s  so im probable th at  
It sou nd ed  a s  i f  i t  h ad  been con­
cocted .

K a n to r  denied  G reeff’s  a ffidavit 
and a-^ked for an insp ection  of 
th e  ce ll h e  occu pied  in  M arshall 
Square to  su pp ort h is con­
ten tio n  th a t  th e  cell door did 
n o t  a llo w  the occu p a n t to  see  
e ith er  up  or dow n th e  corridor.

R eg a rd in g  M ajor V an  N ie- 
k e r k ’s a ffidavit, K antor  said  in  
an  a ffid a v it th a t  he k n ew  o f no 
o rg a n isa tio n  p la n n in g  an  escape  
fo r  th e  R ivon ia  accu sed  nor of  
th e  p lan  itse lf.

NOT SECURE
I f  granted bail and offered an 

escape h e  would not avail h im self  
of it but would approach' the police.

Dr. Lowen said nobody knew the  
source o f the docum ent which  
alleged the escape plan. It could 
well be a letter w ritten by some 
lunatic.

Dr. Lowen continued: "If my 
learned friend can shield behind  
th is kind of docum ent then the  
sa fety  of an accused is not vouch­
safed  any m ore.”

T he judge said he would give a 
decision  after hearing the bail 
application on behalf o f Lionel 
B ernstein , postponed until today.

Probe into 
complaint 
by Yutar

Pretoria Reporter
A N allegation was m ade in  the  

Pretoria Suprem e Court yester­
day that Mr. D. A. K uny, who ap­
peared w ith Dr. G. Lowen, Q.C., and 
Mr. H. Schw arz for Jam es K antor  
in the Rivonia trial, said after  
the dram atic allegation of the  
escape plot on W ednesday: "They 
will stop a t nothing. They will 
perjure any arrjount o f evidence.”

Dr. P. Yutar, the D eputy- 
A ttorney-G eneral, who told the  
court o f  the alleged escape plot, 
said  Mr. K uny had said this in the 
presence of a w arrant officer of the  
police. T he officer was prepared to 
enter the w itness box and swear 
th at th is was so.

A r e f le c t io n
He said th a t Mr. K uny’s remark 

was a serious reflection on him  
(Dr. Y u t a r h i s  colleagues and 
the police. He dem anded an im m e­
diate apology as th is was "the 
tim e and -the forum .”

G ranted an opportunity to reply 
by Mr. Justice De W et, Mr. Kuny 
said th is was the first he had  
heard of the m atter. He denied 
that he had m ade the remark.

T he judge said the allegation  
had been made, Mr. K uny had  
denied it  and the m atter would 
have to be investigated.
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A  RCHIE LEW ITTON, a 90-day detainee has been  on  
a hunger strike since h is arrest last Friday, accord­

ing  to h is w ife, Dr. Y vonne Lejeune, senior lecturer in  
psychology at the University o f  the W itwatersrand.

Dr. Lejeune said la st n igh t th a t' 
she v isited  her husband last S a t­
urday, a day after h is  arrest. He 
told her then  th a t she should not. 
bring him  any food. S h e  did not 
take th is seriously, but w hen she 
visited  h im  again  yesterday she 
noticed th a t he looked pale and 
drawn.

H e th en  told her h e  had been on 
a hunger strike since h is arrest.

“H is protest is  a g a in st th e  90-day 
detention  provisions w hich he 
considers to  be unjust,” she said.

T O  ENGLAND
Dr. L ejeune said  sh e  w as due to 

take up a lecturing position with  
the U niversity of K eele in England  
on January 1, n ex t year. In  her 
opinion her husband's application  
for first a  passport, and then  an  
ex it perm it, had  sparked off the  
in terest o f the security police in  
him .

S h e  said she still intended  
leaving for England at the end of 
th e  year w ith  her 16-year-old  
daughter, Linda. Her 18-year-old  
son, Andrew, w ill rem ain South  
Africa.

Colonel G. K lindt, head of the  
security police in  Johannesburg, 
said la st  n ig h t th a t h e  had not 
been inform ed that anyone was on 
hunger strike, and thus could make 
no com m ent. He said L ew itton was 
being held in  Pretoria.

A friend  o f  th e  L ew itton fam ily  
said last n igh t th a t Archie Lewit­
ton w ent on a 13-day hunger 
strike w hen  h e  w as detained
during the state  of em ergecy in  ____ _
1960. He only stopped because the  
group he struck w ith  stopped.

VISITE D  W E E K L Y
T he Com m issioner of Police,

G eneral K eevy, said last n ight he 
had no knowledge of Mr. Lewitton's 
“hunger strike.” “All I  can tell you 
is  th at he is being held in  Johan­
nesburg,” sa id  G eneral K eevy.

G eneral K eevy said 90-day de­
ta inees were visited  every week by 
a m agistrate.

“T hey would surely put to him  
any com plaints they  m ight have.”

T he Com m issioner of Prisons,
Brigadier J . C. S teyn , sa id  last 
night he had n ot received any 
reports about Mr. Lewitton.

B rigadier Coetzee, the deputy- 
com m issioner, said on Thursday 
he knew noth ing of the hunger 
strike.
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T*HE JUDGEPRESIDEN F, Mr. Justice de Wet, refused bail 

for James Kantor and Lionel Bernstein, two of the men 
appearing in the Rivonia sabotage trial, in the • Pretoria 
Supreme Court today. The judge said be thought the temp­
tation lor them to flee tile country would be too great if
lie granted bail. | ,

„  . ' was used for suspicious pav-
He accepted the submissions I ment s "

*3 r H I » K  i 1 -z'sfjrssrt't'zIS™ M,°‘ “ Er*n, “fedil.'« S“".''“nS “nSm
Mr. Justice de Wet said that in 1 Wh8t WaS

other cases several accused had „ .
I een  granted bail and in their i  " ^as also. denied his guilt. 
Upplications they said they would ) * am satisfied that if Kantor 
Stand trial, but they fled the 's '^leased on bail, the* temptation
country

“ One o f the accused in the 
present case (W alter Sisulu) was 
given bail in another case and 
then  went underground until he 

, w as arrested on the present 
charges.”

COMMUNIST  
Dealing particularly with Bern-.

to avail him self of the facilities  
to escape will be far too great.

The Deputy Attorney-General, 
Dr. Yutar, said the im portant 
factor was the strength of the 
case. “ Never have I been pre­
sented with a more powerful case 
than I have against each and 
every one of the accused.” he said.

The affidavit by Major P. van
stein , the judge said he was a j Niekerk was not so far-fetched  
listed  Communist 9,nd has a s s o - ' as defence would m ake out.
ciated with Communists. __

“ K antor's case is different. His 
brother-in-law is Wolpe. who is 
concerned in activities against the 
S tate . Kantor says he knew 
n oth in g  about W olpe’s activities.

“ B ut he knew that Jvolpe was 
a listed  Communist end asked 
him  not to indulge in any political 
activity. The' ‘ Evidence of the  
S tate  will be that many listed 
Com m unists visited Kantor's 
offices and that his trust account

Goldreich and Wolpe had 
escaped from M arshall Square. 
T his could not have been done 
without outside assistance.

* In the plight in which the 
accused find them selves, there is 
no lim it to their ingenuity, and  
that of the organizations behind 
them, here and abroad,” Dr. Yutar 
said. .
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90-DAY 
PRISONERS
THE Minister of Justice for 

the most part made the 
routine and expected 

replies to Mrs. Helen Suzman 
when she interviewed him last 
week on the treatment of the 
90-day detainees. It will come 
as a surprise to most people to 
learn th a t as many as 500 
have been imprisoned under 
this clause during the past six 
months. Of these 120 have 
been discharged and more than 
200 are awaiting trial. But 
th a t still leaves nearly 180 
subjected to the worst features 
of this shocking law — no 
charge, no tria l and no means 
of stating their case.

Mrs. S u z m a n  naturally 
raised the question W'hich has 
been in the minds of all those 
who give the prisoners a 
thought, namely the rumours 
tha t “third degree” methods 
were being used by the police 
or the prison staff in some 
cases. The Minister empha- I 
tically denied tha t there was I 
any tru th  in these stories of j  
ill-treatm ent and promised to 
investigate any case that was 
brought to his notice. He also 
assured Mrs. Suzman that he 
was not trying to “break” the 
detainees mentally, but this 
surely is a question of what is

meant by “breaking.” Psychol- j 
ogical pressure,/ in varying 
degrees, is involved inevitably 
in the bare fact of solitary 

. confinement for long periods.
One of the avowed purposes of 

. this kind of detention is the 
extraction of information and, 
although Mr. Vorster may 
claim that he is not out to 
“break” his prisoners mentally,

. to most people he will seem to 
be doing something that comes 
very near to that. He says 
that, if the detainees were to 
show signs of being mentally 
affected by their detention, a 
doctor would be called in by j 
the prison authorities or the i 
visiting magistrate. This is not , 
very reassuring. Mental deteri­
oration may have gone a long 
way before it comes noticeable 
to a warder or a busy magis- j 
tra te  doing his rounds. On the >! 
allegation tha t the prisoners 
were locked in for 23 hours 
out of the 24 and could not 
speak to anyone even during 
their brief exercise periods the 
Minister made no comment.

. Even if Mrs. Suzman did not 
get much out of Mr. Vorster, 
it  is good to know that a t least t 
one Menjber of Parliament has { 
not forgotten the plight of ’ 
these detainees and has put 
her anxieties about the condi­
tions of their imprisonment 
directly to the Minister. With 
fa r too many people in South 
Africa it is a case of “out of 
sight, out. of mind.” The 
country should be grateful to 
Mrs. Suzman for reminding 
the Government th a t these so 
easily forgotten people are not 
entirely forgotten.

- JKy- t
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Ill THE S U P R E M E  C O U R T  DF 5 D U T H  AFRICA.

(TR A N S V A A L  P R O V I N C I A L  D I V I S I O N  )

B e f o r e :  The H o n o u r a b l e  Mr. J u s t i c e  DE WET, J u d g e - P r e s i d e n t  .

In the m a t t e r  o f :

THE S T A T E  v s . N E L 5 0 N  M A N D E L A  AN D  O T H E R S .

12 t h  JUN E  1 9 6 4 .

- J U D G E ' S  REMARKS IN P A S 5 I N G  S E N T E N C E  - 

DE WET. J.P.

I hav e  h e a r d  a g r e a t  d e a l  d u r i n g  the c o u r s e  of 

this cas e  a b o u t  the g r i e v a n c e s  o f  the n o n - E u r o p e a n  p o p u l a t i o n .  

The a c c u s e d  h a v e  t o l d  m e, and t h e i r  c o u n s e l  have t o l d  m e,  

that the a c c u s e d ,  w h o  are a l l  leaders o f  the n o n - E u r o p e a n  j

p o p u l a t i o n ,  h a v e  b e e n  m o t i v a t e d  e n t i r e l y  by a d e s i r e  to 

a m e l i o r a t e  t h e s e  g r i e v a n c e s .  I am by no m e a n s  c o n v i n c e d  

t hat the m o t i v e s  of the a c c u s e d  w e r e  as altruistic as they
I

w i s h e d  the C o u r t  to b e l i e v e .  P e o p l e  who o r g a n i s e  a r e ­

v o l u t i o n  u s u a l l y  p lan to take o v e r  the G o v e r n m e n t ,  and 

p e r s o n a l  a m b i t i o n  c a n n o t  be e x c l u d e d  as a m o t i v e .

T h e  f u n c t i o n  o f  t h i s  C o u r t ,  as is the f u n c t i o n  

of a C o urt in a n y  c o u n t r y ,  is to e n f o r c e  l a w  and o r d e r ,  and 

to e n f o r c e  the l a w s  o f  t h e  S t a t e  w i t h i n  vhich it functions.

The crime of w h i c h  t he a c c u s e d  h a v e  been c on­

v i c t e d ,  t h a t  is t h e  m a i n  crime, t h e  c r i m e  of  c o n s p i r a c y ,  is 

in e s s e n c e  o n e  o f  hig h  t r e a s o n .  The S t a t e  has d e c i d e d  not 

to c h a r g e  t he c r i m e  in t his form. B e a r i n g  this in m i n d , 

and giving the m a t t e r  v e r y  s e r i o u s  c o n s i d e r a t i o n ,  I have 

d e c i d e d  not to  i m p o s e  t h e  s i p r e m e  p e n a l t y  w h i c h  in a c a s e
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l ike this w o u l d  u s u a l l y  b e  t he p r o p e r  p e n a l t y  for t h e  c r i m e  

But c o n s i s t e n t  w ith m y  d u ty, t h a t  is t he o n l y  l e n i e n c y  

w h i c h  I c a n  show.

The s e n t e n c e  in the cas e  of a ll the a c c u s e d  will 

b e  one of l ife i m p r i s o n m e n t .  In t h e  ca s e  of  t h e  a c c u s e d  

w ho h a v e  b een c o n v i c t e d  on m o r e  t h a n  o n e  c o u n t ,  

t h e B e  c o u n t s  w ill be t a k e n  t o g e t h e r  for p u i p o s e  of s e n t e n c e



IN TiiK SUPREME COURT OF SOUTH AFHICA 

(THAMSVAAL PROVINCIAL DIVISION)

TUT7! ST AT F.

>-
against

1. NELSON MANDELA,

2. WALTER SISULU,

3. DENNIS GOLDBERG,

4. GOVAN MBEKI ,

5. AHMED MOHAMED XATHRADA,

i .  LIONEL BERNSTEIN,

7. RAYMOND MHLABA,

0. JAMES KANTOR,

9. ELIAS MOTSO ALEDI and

10. ANDREW MLANGENI.

DE v/ET, J.P.: Ths first count alleges that the accused 

are guilty of the offence of sabotage, in contravention 

of section 21(1) of Act 7b of 1962, in that during the 

period 27th June, 1962, to 11th July, 1963, and at Ri- „ 

vonia, Travallyn and Mountain View in the Province of 

the Tran3vaal, as well as at other places within the Re­

public of South Africa, the accused 1 to 7 personally 

arid by virtue of their heing members of an association 

of persons, within the purview of section 381(7) of Act 

56 of 1955, as amended, known as the National High Com­

mand, the accused No. 8 personally and by virtue of his 

being a member of an association of persons within the 

purview of section 381(7) of Act 56 of 1955, as amended, 

styled James Kantor and Partners under which name he con­



ducted his profession in partnership with Harold Wolpe, 

and the accused 0 and 10, together with a number of 

named person.'! and organization:; did, acting in concert 

and in the execution of a common purpose, wrongfully and 

unlawfully, through their agents and servants, commit 

the following wrongful and wilful acts, namely:

(i) the recruitment of persons for instruction 

and training, both within and outside the 

Republic of South Africa, in

(a) the preparation, manufacture and use of 

explosives - for the purpose of commit- 

ing acts of violence and destruction in 

the aforesaid Republic, and

(b) the art of warfare, including guerilla 

warfare, and military training generally

- for the purpose of causing a violent re­

volution in the aforesaid Republic, and 

(ii) the acts particularised and numbered 40 to 

193 in Annexure "B", attached hereto,

whereby the accused, injured, damaged, destroyed, rendered 

useless or un=erviceable, put out of action, obstructed, 

rampered with or endangered -

(a) the health or safety of the public;

(b) the maintenance of law and order;

(c) the supply and distribution of light, power 

or fuel;

(d) postal, telephone or telegraph services or 

installations;

(e) the free movement of traffic on land, and

(f) the property, movable or immovable, of 

other persons or of the State.

4
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The named co-con3pirators include Goldreich and Wolpe as 

well as other poi'sona unknown, und also include a num­

ber of persons named in a schedule to the indictment.

The organization:; named' us co-conspirators are The South 

African Communist Party, The African National Congress 

and the Umkonto We Sizwe (The Spear of the Nation). An- 

nexures to the indictment list a number of further parti­

culars which are relevant to Count 1 as well as to the 

other counts. Count 2 also charges sabotage in contra­

vention of section 21(1) of Act 76 of 1962 and differs 

from the first charge only in that it alleges that the 

accused, together with the named persons and other un­

known persons, did wrongfully conspire with each other 

to aid or procure the commission of or to commit the 

following wrongful and wilful acts. Paragraph (i) is 

the same as Paragraph (i) of the main charge except 

that it deals with further recruitment of persons and 

Paragraph (ii) charges further acts of violence and de­

struction of the nature described in Annexure "3" to the 

indictment. Paragraph (iii) charges a conspiracy to 

coomit acts of guerilla warfare in the Republic. Paragraph 

(iv) charges^acts of assistance to military units of 

foreign countries when invading the aforesaid Republic, 

and (v) acts of participation in a violent revolution 

in the Republic and it is again alleged that these acts 

would have injured, damaged, destroyed, rendered useless 

or unserviceable, t;ut out of action, obstructed, tampered 

with or endangered the health or safety of the public 

etc. Count 3 charges a contravention of section 11(a), 

read with sections 1 and 12, of Act No. 4 4 of 1950, 

and charges that the accused a*vl the co-conspirators



acting in concert and in the execution of a common pur­

pose did wrongfully and unlawfully, through their agents 

and servants, commit the following acts, and the acts 

set out are the same ar, those set out in Count 1.

Count 4 charges a contravention of section 3(l)(b), read 

with* section 2 of Act 8 of 1953, as amended, and alleges 

that the accused and the co-consjiirators, acting in con­

cert and in the execution of a co.amon purpose, did wrong­

fully and unlawfully, personally and through their • 

agents and servants, solicit, acccpt and receive money 

from various persons or bodies of persons, both within 

and outside the Republic of South Africa, and give money 

to various persons or bodies of persons, for the purpose 

of enabling or assisting the commission of offences, 

namely, sabotage in support of a campaign against some 

of the laws of the Republic of South Africa or in support 

of a campaign for the repeal or modification of such laws 

or variation or limitation of the application or adminis­

tration of such laws.

Annexure "B" to the indietment-sets out 193 acts 

of sabotage dating from the 1.0th August, 1961, to the 

5th July, 1963. Annexure "C" sets out particulars 

which I do not need to de.-̂ l with at this stage.

At the conclusion of the case for the prosecution 

I discharged Accused Ho. 8, Kantor, and undertook to 

furnish my reasons at the conclusion of the hearing of 

the whole case. These reasons follow. In the particu­

lars in the indictment it is alleged that the State 

relies upon certain allegations to establish the compli­

city of Accused No. 8. These will be considered seriatim,

(a) "Kantor the senior partner in his legal practice

took into partnership a named Communist and parti-
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cipant in the concerted act. Lon and coiijnon purpose." 

This allegation is fc.ibli:;ho:J u; to a point. It is 

conceded thr'.t his partner, Wolpe, was a listed Communist 

and that there .to prima facie cvi.lonce that he was a 
»•

participant in the ol'fencfts chirged in the indictment.

On the other hand it if; coitunon caur.e that Wolpe is No.

8's brother-in-law and Accused No. 8 stated in an affi­

davit placed before me in connection with his bail appli­

cation that Y/olpe had undertaken not to indulge in any 

illegal political activity whilst he was Accused No. 8 ‘s 

partner. Makda, a qualified assistant in the business 

who gave evidence, said that he was not aware of any 

illegal conduct on the par-t of Wolpe except that he on 

occasions interviewed restricted persons in private, 

sometimes in his own room and sometimes in Magda's room. 

He said that it is most improbable that Accused No. 8 

knew of these interviews, assuming that they were il­

legal, as Accused No. 8 had his n'.vn office, was very 

busy and took no interest in the doings of Magda and of 

7/olpe.

(b) "The partnership,and Kantor personally, handled

many cases in which parties to the concerted action 

and common purpose as well as members of the banned, 

South African Communist Party and the 

A. N. C. were charged with subversive activities."

No details have been given in evidence as to cases 

handled by Kantor but it does appear that some persons 

falling within the general description were clients of 

the firm both in relation to civil and criminal cases.

In my opinion no sinister inference can be drawn from 

this evidence.



(c) "The parties and members referred to in (b)

immediately above frequently held meetings 

in secrecy in the office of t h e 'partnership".

Except for the worn "frequently" this allegation can be 

regarded as established.oxcept as I have already said 

Accused No, 8 probably did not know of these meetings 

nor can it he inferred thatthue interviews were in any 

way connected with the offences specified in the indict­

ment .

(d) “The partnership, and Kantor personally, partici­

pated in the purchase of Lilliesleaf farm, 

Hivonia, in the ntme of a fictitious person".

It was -prima fac ie established that the property in 

question was used as the headquarters of one or more of 

the subversive organizations listed in the indictment 

and that the purchase of the property was made for this 

purpose, that the purchase was made by one Ezra, acting 

for a company which was subsequently incorporated, 

namely Navian Proprietory Limited. The matter of 

floating the company and passing transfer to it was 

originally handled by Y/olpe but was later handed by 

him to another attorney, Furman, and the actual transfer 

and registration of the company was done by Sepal, a 

clerk in Furman's office. In my opinion, even if 

Accused No. 8 knew about this matter, there is no prima 

facie evidence to indicate that he knew that there was 

any illegality attached to the transaction which, 

judging by the papers produced, was a transaction nor­

mally entrusted to an attorney.

(e) "The devious manner of payments in regard to

the purchase of the Rivonia property."



This allegation «\11 be considered when I deal with the 

so-called "Ezra J ^ c o u n t .

(f) "The use of tin; partncr.;h i p tru.'it account as

a conduit pipe- for the.- r:ciiipt of money and 

the payment out the.r-'.-oi in furt ho ranee of the 

concerted act Loti an>i common purpose".

This allegation will he considore.l in relation to the 

various accounts which ?.ro a! 1 &{:■• i to establish this 

allegation.

(g) "Kantor-s vi-it to. _i .liSoleaf and statements

made by him to the police".

The police raided the property in the afternoon of the 

11th July, 1963. A number of persons were arrested and 

a large number of documents were seized. It is clear 

from the evidence that the fact of the raid was known 

to the general public by the early hours of the next 

morning and that an account of the raid had been publish 

ed in at least one newspaper. It also appeared that 

Y/olpe did not come to office the next day, that he at­

tempted to flee and was arrested in one of the country 

districts a few days later. The only evidence against 

No. 8 is that of Warrant Officer Dirker that No. 8 

visited Lilliesleaf on the morning of the 12th and said 

to Dirker that he had come to feed the dogs and the 

fowls, that he appeared to know where the fowl food was, 

that he did in fact feed the fowls. This evidence ap­

pears to me to be highly improbable. None of the other 

police witnesses appear to have any knowledge of the 

purpose of No. 8's visit whereas it is clear that three 

children had been left at the house the previous night 

when their parents had been arrested, that the uncle and

I .



grandmother of tv.o of the children, the Goldreich child­

ren, had come to fetch them and their belongings that 

morning and that the:io per.jons and another woman re­

lation had bc-jn. ( i i .  on the pru|icrty at the same time
►

as Accused Ho. 8, Th^ro is al.o evidence that police 

were stationed at the :..xte who had instruct ions to deny 

access to all person;; v.ho had no legitimate business on 

the property. The suggestion put in cross-examination 

that Accused No. 8 in hi:-, capacity as an attorney had 

accompanied the children's relations in order to fetch 

them seems to me much more pro', able than Dirker's version. 

But even if Dirker's evidence is true it seems to me 

to be of no assistance to the State. If No. 8 had in 

fact been one of the conspirators the last thing I would 

have expected him to do would be to put his head into 

a hornet's nest. Another possibility consistent with 

his innocence is that he was endeavouring to find out 

what had happened to his partner, Wolpe.

I come now to the various files and accounts 

which are relied upon to implicate Accused No. 8. These 

all relate to matters handled by Wolpe, not by Accused 

No. 3, It is necessary to mention in the first place 

that a new system of bookkeeping had been introduced 

by Wolpe when he became a partner and it is conceded by 

the accountant Mr. Cox, who gave evidence for the State, 

that this was a very sound system. It also appears 

from the evidence of the accountant, who periodically 

examined the firm13 accounts, that it is a better system 

than that previously employed. I do not propose to 

explain this system in detail but merely mention that 

two signatures were required on each cheque drawn, namely
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two out of tho:;-: throe: A. Kantor, H. '.Yolpe and Accused 

Ho. 8. At a ihicor :3t;ige Malcda w;ia also given authority 

to sign cheques. It th* prr-tc Lice, for bookkeeping 

purposes, to maze out -i ri.quir.ition for each cheque and 

two carbon copies of each cheque vore kept. A ledger 

c-'.rd was kept relating to the financial affairs of every 

client.

The first account reliod upon is that in Ledger 

Card headed A. Letele. Thin iv:i'lucts an amount of R8,000-00 

received on August 20th, 1962 ami 16 withdrawals from 

this account over the period August 21st to December 12th. 

The account was balanced on the 28th February, 1963, by 

transfer of an amount of 75c to "Defence and aid". Pe­

culiarities in regard to this account are that the file 

relating to this client contains no instructions or in­

formation relating to the withdrawals from this account.

In the case of seven of the withdrawals the cheques were 

payable to cash or selves. In regard to the first 

peculiarity it seems from other files produced that in 

any case Wolpe did not record instructions in many cases, 

even in cas^s of files where there is no suspicion of 

any irregularity. It is difficult, if not impossible, 

to ascertain from these files what work was done or what 

instructions were given by the client. It is also clear 

from Makda's evidence that Accused No. 8 never interfered 

with him or with Wolpe in relation to work done by them.

It would certainly also, in my experience, be unusual 

for one partner in a firm of attorneys to check the work 

done by another,even if he had the time to do this.which 

would be unlikely in a busy practice. As to withdrawals 

in cash, a number of cheques were exhibited when Makda
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was cross-examined showing that amounts were frequently 

withdrawn in cash from the Trust Account. Makda ex­

plains that this would he done for payments to clients in 

cash from thc-ir own accounts, for disbursements on be- 
>•

half of clients and possibly for oth^r reasons. Makda 

says that under the old bookkeeping system described by 

the firms accountant ai: uns.itL.;f ictory Accused No. 8 

was averse to cash withdrawals but under the new so-called 

mechanical system he did not object. A point is also 

made that the purpose of Liu; withdrawal is not specified 

in the cheques made out to c:ish or selves. Again quite 

a number of other cheques were exhibited where similar 

withdrawals were made and the purpose of the withdrawal 

was not specified but where there is no suspicion of 

illegality or impropriety in relation to the cheques 

in question.

The account of Ezra reflects receipts from Ezra 

in cash and cheques totalling R12,262-60 and expenditure 

in relation to the deposit on the Lilliesleaf purchase, 

disbursements in regard to the bond on the property, 

transfer costs, bank guarantee costs, repairs to car, 

renovations Lilliesleaf and the costs of transfer paid 

to Attorney Furman who, as I have already said passed the 

transfer. In relation to this account there is evidence 

that Wolpe sent an amount of R5,000-00 in cash to Furman's 

office at a later stage which covers the balance of the 

initial payment due. This transaction is not reflected 

in the records of the firm and there is no suggestion as to 

how it can be inferred that Accused No. 8 knew about this 

transaction.

I do not propose to deal with the accounts of



First, Rosenberg, Defence and Aid and Walter Sizulu in 

detail. In the light of the evidence which has been 

given there are peculiarities about these accounts and 

in the cases where f iI on have been found relating to
►

these clients there .is the same dearth of information 

relating to instruction:- j.'ivcn by clients or reasons 

for the transactions reflected In their accounts. These 

matters were all handled by Wolpe- and there is no reason 

to believe that Accused No. 6 at any time examined the 

files or the ledger cards olo.ieiy. In fact on the 

evidence of Makda the probability is that he never 

examined either. Even if he had examined the accounts 

I doubt if a cursory examination would have disclosed 

cause for suspicion. A remarkable feature of these ac­

counts is that in no instance was any fee or charge de­

bited against the client. In effect, as conceded hy 

Mr. Cox, Wolpe in each case merely acted as banker for 

the client in question except in the case of Ezra where 

he did portion of the work in connection with the floata­

tion of the company but made no charge. On these facts 

the questions are posed,firstly, whether the transactions 

reflected in these accounts related to the activities of 

subversive organizations mentioned in the indictment 

and, secondly, can it be inferred that Accused No. 8 had 

knowledge of this fact. Even if the first question is 

answered in the affirmative there seems to me to be no 

basis on which it can be inferred that No.8 Accused knew 

at the time that payments were being made by Wolpe to 

aid saboteurs and the persons who organized acts of 

sabotage — if this was in fact the case - or that 

Lilliesleaf was being purchased as the intended head­



quarters of the subversive organization - which prima facie 

does appear to be the case. To hold that a partner is 

prima facie deemed to know what his co-partner knows or 

does would be stretching inference too far.

The alternative cn:;e against Accused No. 8 is 

based on section 38l(7) of Act 56 of 195?. Paraphrasing 

that section the effect is that where a partner has in 

carrying on the business or affairs of that partnership, 

or in furthering or in endeavouring to further its in­

terest, committed an offence, any other partner is deem­

ed to he guilty of chat offence unless it is proved that 

he did not take part in the commission of the offence, 

and that he could not have prevented it.

It is argued in the first ulace that it is 

proved on a balance of probabilities that Accused No. 8 

did not take part in any of the offences alleged in the 

indictment and in so far as any of these offences were 

committed by Wolpe he could not have prevented them.

The proof required where the onus is placed on an ac­

cused need not necessarily be placed before the Court by 

the accused himself.or by his witnesses. Such proof 

r.iay be found in the evidence of State 'wi tnesae;'. Compare 

for instance The State v. Heller, 1964(1) S.A. 524 (W) 

at pages 539 et seq. Secondly, the question is whether 

it is proved that Accused No. 3 did not take part in 

any of the offences which it is postulated were committed 

by Wolpe. Now it is true that Accused No. 8 counter­

signed some of the cheques in relation to the purchase 

of Lilliesleaf but this offence which it is postulated 

was committed by Wolpe was to aid and abet the co­

conspirators named in Counts 1, 2 and _3 in making the
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purchase. Mr. -Yutar has expressly stated that it is 

not alleged that Accused No. 8 in fact took any part in 

this conspiracy and tint the State in fact admits that 

he tdok no such part. In view of this admission and 

in the absence of any evidenco o t' association by him 

with the alleged connyiivitora it is highly improbable 

that Accused No. 8 had any knowledge of the purpose for 

which the property wa.i buing purchased.

If it is postulated chit money was being collect 

ed for subversive purposes and the collections and pay­

ments were channelled through th.2 other accounts I have 

referred to it suerns that, in the fir:it place, there is 

eviience that No. 8 Accused did not handle the receipt of 

such money and if money was.in fact oaid out to be used 

for subversive purposes Accur.ed No. 8 could only "be said 

to have participated in this offence if he had known 

the object of the payment. Here again it seems to me 

r.io.~t improbable that Accused No. 3 had any such know­

ledge.

It has been hold in several cases that where 

an accused person has no knowledge of an offence and 

cannot reasonably be expected to have such knowledge 

that it follows that he could not have prevented it. 

Saje.g. Rex v. Kapelus, 1Q44 T.P.D. 70. It is said at 

page 71 "One must have regard to all the circumstances 

and the difficulties that might he created if it were 

held that, in these circumstances, the appellant could 

have taken steps to prevent the infringement of this 

regulation". There an employee committed a breach of 

a regulation whilst the accused, a director, was serving 

another customer. This decision was followed in Rex v
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ITborsohn, T.P.D., 12.4.40, reported only in 1949(1) P.H. 

K. 76. In this case offence:: were committed by an 

er.ipioyee of A company in the absonce of the accused, 

a director, and contrary'to hi :5 instructions. It is 

said in the original judgment, which I have consulted, 

that "If it were held that Ebcrsohn could have prevented 

the commission of the offence, a director of a company 

would have to be present at and take part in every 

transaction,however small, of the company. In a great 

departmental store this -.vould obviously be impossible.

So,too, would it seem to be impossible in a business of 

the size of the appellant company's butchery".

It would seem from the cases that all that is 

required of a director is to take all reasonable steps 

to prevent the commission of offences. In the case of 

a partnership it is obviously impossible for a partner 

to keep a check on every act done by his co-partner.

A good deal of mutual trust is essential and is in fact 

one of the requi sitos of a partnership. Mr. Yutar 

has referred to cases who're disciplinary action has been 

taken against an attorney and it is said in cases where 

there has been defalcations or embezzlement of trust 

moneys, that it is no excuse for an attorney to say 

that he trusted his partner and left the bookkeeping 

to him, e.g. Law Society v. W and Another, 1962(4) S.A. 

559. These are cases where the partner in question 

has kept no check at all on the books. The position 

may very well be different where an independent book­

keeper is employed who, as in the presont case, is ad­

mitted to be competent and efficient and in addition an 

accountant i3 employed to make a periodical check on the



position of the trust account as is the position in the 

present case. In the present case it is noteworthy 

that the accountant who wa:> .'.mployed did not find any 

cause fo^ suspicion’or suspect any irregularities. The 

suspicion appears to have arisen ex_ post facto because 

of subsequent events. Mr. Yutar has also relied upon 

the decision in Rex v. Kekane and Others, 1953(4) S.A.

37o. There members of an association were convicted in 

relation to offences committed by an employee. The cases 

of Kaoelus and Bbersohn (sunra) were not referred to or 

dissented from. RAMSBOTTOM, J . , says in relation to the 

accused: "There is nothing to show that they took any 

steps whatsoever to see thit tht: rules of the club were 

carried out". In thj present case it seems to me that 

the evidence shows that Accused No. 8 took all steps 

which could reasonably be r e t i r e d  of him to protect the 

partnership trust account and for tnis reason cannot be 

held liable for the offences postulated to have been com­

mitted by 'Volpe. I found it unnecessary to decide 

whether it was proved that Wolpe actually committed any 

of the offences falling within the present indictment 

in relation to his "conduct of the affairs of the partner­

ship." I also found it unnecessary to decide whether the 

ac-j alleged fell within the partnership business.

I propose to <-ive a short account of the proper­

ties which figure in the evidence as having been used

by the alleged conspirators. According to the evidence 
l

of Watermeyer, an Estate Agent, a certain Harmel, using 

the name of Jacobson, inquired about a quiet secluded 

place for his brother-in-law Ezra who had a nervous break­

down. She showed him a number of places and he eventual­

ly a. ;recd,to purchase Lilliesleaf farm at Rivonia on the
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north-western outskirts of Johannesburg in regard to 

which Harmel offered :;n amount of R25,000-00 which was 

acccpted. . It is common c iur.e that the property was 
>•

purchased by Ezra in the name of a company which was 

about to be formed and which was eventually formed under 

the none of Navian Proprietary Limited. It is also com­

mon cause that the initial deposit was paid by Wolpe to 

tho clerk in Furman's office who dealt with the trans­

fer and the floatation of the company. Also the second

deposit of Rl,000-00 was paid by Wolpe. According to
the

the evidence of Fenn ho was appointed /  public officer 

of Mavian Proprietary Limited at the request of Wolpe. 

Ezi'a was a director of the company. He said he en­

countered considerable difficulty in getting the neces­

sary details to enable him to write up the books for the 

company. He testified further that in March 1962 he 

opened a bunking account in the name of the company which 

at no time had sufficient funds to pay the first yearly 

instalment due. The evidence of Jelliman is that he 

was engaged as caretaker of the property and supposed 

to be manager of the farm. He lived at Rivonia from 

October 19cl to February 1362. A few days after he moved 

into the property Accused No. 1 also moved in and occu­

pied c.ne of the outside rooms. In December Goldreich 

with his family moved into the house.

The property in question is large in extent.

On it v.-as situated a normal dwelling house and a large 

block of outbuildings consisting of ten rooms shown on 

tho. map which is produced as an exhibit. These rooms 

are numbered 1 to 10. 11 Room- No. 1 is referred to 

as the thatched cottage. Certain alterations were made



to this room. A b-'ith and toilet was installed and it 

was in effect a self-containc-J Q-it. As will he seen 
*

hereafter most of the accused occupied one or other room 

in the outbuildings at varioua times.

The next property to be described is a cottage 

detached from a house situate:! on large grounds at 10 

Terrace Road in Norwood, referred to in the evidence as 

Mountain View Cottage. This cottage was hired from 

the occupants of the house, Mr. and Mrs Kriel, by a 

person named Bronkhorst. Thy cottage was occupied 

during part of May 196.5 and during June 1963 by Accused 

No. 3 and thereafter until his arrest on the 11th July, 

1963, by Accused Mo. 5. It appears from the evidence 

that Goldreich and Wolpe, who had been arrested and 

would have been tried with the present accused, managed 

to escape from prison. They made some use of the cot­

tage, disguised themselves as Roman Catholic priests, 

made their way to Basutolan-1 and from there by air out 

of til a country. It a,-pears from the evidence that the 

police only became aware of the significance of this 

cott:_~e early in September 1962 and that the property 

via:; oi»ly searched and investigated on the 5th of Sep­

tember. At that stage the only thing of significance 

found on the premises was a quantity of burnt paper in 

the backyard which may have consisted of books, pam­

phlets and documents.

The next property is that referred to in the 

evidence as Travallyn, which was a dwelling house 

situated on fairly large grounds some little distance 

wer;t of Johannesburg. This property was purchased ty 

Accu .c-d No. 3 under the name of Barnard during June of

1 7 .
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